
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, MARCH 26, 2019 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

6:30 PM 
 

 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

Consent Agenda 

Mayor’s Report 

 

Staff Reports 
Town Administrators Report 

Public Works Report 

Police Department Report 

Town Treasurer Report 

Disbursements 

Unfinished Business 
1. Revised Preliminary Environmental Assessment for the North Fork Mancos Master Development Plan – 

Town Response Letter 

2. Personnel Handbook Sections 202 & 209 Amendment – Access to Personnel Files and Medical 

Information Privacy 

3. Edesia Community Kitchen - Mediation 

4. Town Administrator Review/Goals & Objectives 

New Business 
5. Sustainable North Fork Valley – Single Use Plastic Bag Ban 

6. Citizen Request – Presentation of Plastic Bag Reduction Basics 

7. The Learning Council & Colorado Farm & Food Alliance - Large Park Special Event - Community Fair 

8. Phil Wassell - Paonia Experiential Academy – Town Park Mural Follow-up 

9. Mountain Harvest Creative – 2018 Financial Impact Report 

10. Tree Board Vacancy – Letters of Interest Deadline 

Committee Reports 
Finance & Personnel 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Tree Board 

Space to Create 

Adjournment 
 

  

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the 

Mayor without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall 

address Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific 

(i.e.: Mr., Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board 

Members shall be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or 

making a suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer 

before speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and 

any group they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or 

presiding officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda 

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

item or issue(s) under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and 

personal attacks. 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided 

in the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be 

conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a 

Consent Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon 

request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to 

action by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or 

explained and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but 

not limited to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval 

of liquor licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-

material Scribner errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there 

is a material error in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately 

either immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the 

Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken 

by the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in 

the open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the 

Board to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible 

without compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more 

than one of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the 

announcement of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into 

executive session, there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are 

subject to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of 

executive session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that 

session or with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential 

unless a majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

  

3



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

4



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Approval of Agenda 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

5



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Announcements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

6



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Visitors & Guests 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

7



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Consent Agenda 

Summary:   

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

8



 

  

FEBRUARY 21, 2019 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Special Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

February 21, 2019 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 
 

PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Samira Hart 

 

ABSENT 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

Trustee Dave Knutson 

 

Approval of Agenda 

New Business 
1. Resolution 2019-06 – Local Emergency Declaration 

 Mayor Stewart provided an update regarding the current water situation and the need for 

the declaration of a local emergency, which was necessary to receive assistance from 

Delta County, and potentially from the State. A requirement of the declaration requires 

the Board to ratify the declaration within 7 days.   

 

Mayor Stewart provided a list of thanks to multiple entities as well as the staff for their 

work and assistance in this emergency. 

  

Administrator Knight provided an update to the repairs being made on the water 

system.  Eight (8) of ten (10) water zones are charged and being disinfected.  Some 

people are still without water due to low pressure and lines that run up-hill. 

 

No contaminates have been found in any water tests and there is no evidence of any back-

flow issues.  

 

One resident in Town questioned the cause of the break, which at this point is unknown.  

Donna Mann - West 4th Street – is upset with the Town for not notifying that there was a 

leak within the system ahead of time.  

  

9



 

  

FEBRUARY 21, 2019 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

Motion made by Trustee Hart, Seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout to adopt 

Resolution 2019-06 Local Emergency Declaration, as presented. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart 

 

Adjournment 
 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Hart to adjourn. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart 

 
  

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

10



 

  

MARCH 12, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

March 12, 2019 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 

 

PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

Trustee Samira Hart 

Trustee Dave Knutson 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion made by Trustee Hart, Seconded by Trustee Bear to approve the agenda as 

presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Announcements 
 

Trustee Knutson announced it is Sunshine Week, supporting the Sunshine Law that supports 

transparency. 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
  

None 

 

Consent Agenda 
 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Bachran to approve 

consent agenda items as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee 

Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Mayor’s Report 
 

Mayor Stewart thanked Chief Ferguson and the officers of the Paonia Police Department for 

their assistance during the water issues. 

 

11



 

  

MARCH 12, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

Staff Reports 

Town Administrators Report 

 Water System Update: 

 

 Administrator Knight reported the water system is running as designed.  The 1MG tank is 

full at 10ft the 2MG tank is at 25 of 30 feet.  Public Works plans to investigate some 

smaller leaks on spring-lines in the next few weeks as the weather warms up.  The after-

action meeting is tentatively scheduled March 28
th

, where staff will meet with the 

agencies that assisted.  An after-action report will be finalized following the meeting. 

Staff again was thanked for the work put in during the water issue.  

There is no plan for a full update until the after-action meeting and report are completed.  

 

Opened for questions. -  

Mayor Stewart asked how much water was drawn from Roeber Reservoir. Approximately 

2-acre feet of 20-acre feet offered. Roeber was shut off once the 1MG tank was filled. 

 

Mayor Stewart recommended scheduling a work session for the first meeting in April to 

follow up from the after-action plan. Administrator Knight recommended giving 

additional time for the completion of the after-action report. 

 

It was agreed upon to follow-up with scheduling at the next meeting.  

  

Public Works Report 

 The crew has started cleaning gutters and storm drains.  

Continue to fill potholes. 

A new program was installed at the 1MG plant to correct deficiency in system. 

  

Police Department Report 

 In preparation for the upcoming trial at Delta County Chief Ferguson requested to be 

excused and stated he had nothing additional report.  

 

Trustee Bear requested the officers please watch for those making U-turns on Grand 

Avenue. 

 

Town Treasurer Report 

 Reviewed disbursements. 

Executed letter of credit with First State Bank. 

The emergency team helped track costs and in-kind services for the water issue. 

Mr. Donegan provided recommendations for compliancy to adhere with FEMA 

requirements for the Town purchasing policy. 

Preliminary information is being gathered for the audit.  

 

Disbursements 
 Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Hart to approve 

disbursements as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, 

12



 

  

MARCH 12, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Unfinished Business 
 Personnel Handbook Sections 202 & 209 Amendment – Access to Personnel Files and 

Medical Information Privacy 

 

 Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout read sections of changes recommended for the Board for a vote 

at next meeting.  

  

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Hart to table discussion 

to the next Board meeting. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

New Business 
 PUBLIC HEARING: 397 Clark Avenue A – Special Use 

  

 Mayor Stewart provided information regarding the application, documents in packet, and 

planning commission recommendations. 

 

The Public Hearing procedures were explained for the public. 

 

Hearing opened: 7:00PM. 

Administrator Knight provided an overview of the requirement for a special use permit 

for 397 A Clark Avenue. No exterior adjustments are being made to the building. The 

interior uses are the only subject matter addressed in the special use application. 

a total of five (5) kilns will be in the building, one (1) for the instructor, four (4) for 

students. Frederick Zimmer added that the neighborhood impact is minimal.  Traffic is 

increased right now due to Silver Leaf development.  

 

Board Questions: 

All fees paid? - Yes. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding use of the driveway and/or easements for a road.  

Peter VanWinkle and Karen Goode were present as members of Paonia Clay Works and 

added they were agreeable to having eight days for commercial sales.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the levels of attendance for different activities.  

Trustee Knutson added that the Board would like to see the group take initiative to come 

to the Board if they begin to grow outside of the perimeters of approval.  

 

Public comment: 

None. 

 

Hearing Closed: 7:13PM. 

Open for Board discussion and deliberation. 

13



 

  

MARCH 12, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

Requests are:  

Manufacturing Pottery – As presented. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Knutson to approve artistic 

manufacturing of pottery. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Workshops – The Planning Commission recommendation limited to five students, no 

more than three times per month.  

 

Motion made by Trustee Bachran seconded by Trustee Bear for the holding of workshops 

with twelve (12) students, three (3) times per month. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem 

Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee 

Knutson. 

 

Use of Property for Retail Sales - The Planning Commission recommended approval with 

limitations set by Board.  The applicants are agreeable to limit 8 days per month. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Hart to approve the use of the 

property for retail sales up to 8 days per month. 

 

Original Motion amended by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Bear adding a 

restriction to end activity at 9pm. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee 

Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Curb Apron and Traffic Control on Minnesota Avenue -  

Discussion ensued regarding additional traffic crossing the sidewalk, needing a sidewalk 

apron and installing of traffic control sign. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, Second by Trustee Bachran to require the applicant to install 

sidewalk apron and a traffic control sign for Minnesota Avenue. 

 

Re-opened public hearing at 7:26PM 

 

Mr. Zimmer requested approval to install the apron when/if damage occurs.  

Trustee Bear recommended the sidewalk apron be installed proactively.  

 

Trustee Bachran questioned if the apron can be installed without damaging the sidewalk. 

Yes. 

 

Hearing closed at 7:29pm. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the timeline for apron installation.  

 

Motion to amend main motion by Trustee Bachran, Second by Trustee Bear to allow six 

months for completion of sidewalk apron installation and traffic control sign installation. 

14



 

  

MARCH 12, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

Seconded by Trustee Bear. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, Second by Trustee Bachran requiring an approximate 6-month 

review following the installation.  Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee 

Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Re-opened public hearing at 7:35pm  

 

Peter VanWinkle requested a year review to follow in line with the lease. 

 

Close hearing: 7:38pm. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, Second by Trustee Budinger to plan installation with Public 

Works Director Loberg and bring plan to public works committee meeting. Voting Yea: 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee 

Hart, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Attorney Nerlin stated Mr. Loberg can provide the direction to the applicant and follow 

with the public works committee.  

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson to delegate the decision regarding the apron installation be 

given to the public works committee for final decision. Motion failed for lack of a 

second.  

 

Main amended motion carried. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson.  

5-minute recess. 

 Revised Preliminary Environmental Assessment for the North Fork Mancos Master 

Development Plan 

  

Andrew Forkes-Gudmundson was present on behalf of Citizens for a Healthy 

Community, requesting the Board submit additional comments regarding the Revised 

Preliminary Environmental Assessment for the North Fork Mancos Master Development 

Plan (NFMMDP). Mr. Forkes-Gudmundson explained the changes to the original 

proposal, which he described as "high water intensive" and provided data regarding the 

scale of water used in comparison to domestic use. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding access to the required amounts of water, seismic feasibility 

studies, traffic, and open-river definition.   

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, supported by Trustee Hart stating the Board 

wishes to comment and for Administrator Knight to work with Mr. Forkes-Gudmundson 

to address the issues discussed and bring letter to Board at next meeting. Voting Yea: 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee 

Knutson. Voting Nay: Trustee Bear. 

15



 

  

MARCH 12, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

Committee Reports 
Finance & Personnel 

 Nothing to report. 

 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

 Nothing to report. 

 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

 Willing to reschedule building department meeting for water work session in April if 

needed. 

Plastic Bag Reduction plan to come before the Board at next meeting. 

Dark Sky’s plan to come before the Board in the near future. 

 

Space to Create 

 Nothing to report. 

Tree Board 

 Working on the Arbor Day Celebration. 

 

Executive Session 
 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Hart to enter in to executive 

session for discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) and not 

involving: any specific employees who have requested discussion of the matter in open 

session; any member of this body or any elected official; the appointment of any person 

to fill an office of this body or of an elected official; or personnel policies that do not 

require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees; Town Administrator 

Review. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson. 
 

 Entered in to executive session at: 825pm 

 Returned to open session at: 9:20pm 

 

 Those in attendance were: Mayor Stewart, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson, Town Attorney Bo Nerlin, and Town 

Administrator Ken Knight. 

 

 No issues noted. 

Adjournment 
9:25pm 

  

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

16



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

17



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 8, 2019 
 

 

Administrator’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

18



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Public Works Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

19



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Police Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

20



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   03/01/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
02:00:59 WELFARE CHECK ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
19:25:23 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
20:22:21 AGENCY ASSIST

MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO
HIGHWAY 133; REDWOOD ARMS 
MOTEL; Paonia, CO

PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   03/02/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
00:07:28 TrafficAccident 1200 3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   03/03/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
13:40:15 WELFARE CHECK PAN AMERICAN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   03/04/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
07:42:43 Information PPD PPD
14:17:21 FIRE PPD PPD
17:31:02 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
GRAND AVE; , Paonia, CO 
VISTA DR, Paonia, CO
HIGHWAY 133; REDWOOD ARMS 
MOTEL, Paonia, CO

PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   03/05/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
07:54:29 FIRE DORRIS AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
14:15:24 SHOPLIFTING 2ND ST; DONS SUPERMART, Paonia, CO     PPD PPD
21:23:00 RESTR/PROT ORDR RIO GRANDE AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CAA
Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   03/06/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
20:00:48 WELFARE CHECK GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
22:37:17 Disturbance PAN AMERICAN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW

21



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 3

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   03/07/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:14:06 THEFT PPD PPD
16:20:50 TRESPASS PPD PPD CIT
21:22:13 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD VW

22:01:57 Traffic Stop

Address
RIO GRANDE AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
Pan America Avenue (Apple Valley Park), 
Paonia,
100 Block of 4th Street, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   03/08/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
00:57:45 WELFARE CHECK RIO GRANDE AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
15:57:50 AGENCY ASSIST HIGHWAY 133 & BETHLEHEM RD, PPD DIST3

19:18:05 ALARM
Paonia, CO
MEADOWBROOK BLVD, Paonia, CO          PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   03/09/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
13:46:10 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
15:28:05 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
22:18:30 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
200 Block of 2nd. St., Paonia, 
700 2ND ST, Paonia, CO 
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   03/12/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
10:30:29 WELFARE CHECK PPD PPD
15:17:11 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
15:53:44 VIN INSPECTION

CLARK AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   03/13/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:56:50 SUSPICIOUS

Address
304 NIAGARA AVE; Paonia, CO PPD PPD

15:54:40 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD PPD VW
16:49:21 VIN INSPECTION

MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO
POPLAR AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

22



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 3

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 03/01/19` and `00:00:01 03/16/19`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   03/14/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
16:51:06 Traffic Stop 200 Block of 2nd Street, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   03/15/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
00:09:28 DOMESTIC PPD PPD CAA
03:58:02 AGENCY ASSIST PPD DIST3
16:13:46 Disturbance PPD PPD VW

16:52:03 911/hangup

Address
2ND ST, Paonia, CO
MATHEWS LN, Paonia, CO
MAIN AVE; Paonia, CO

DORRIS AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
17:21:42 LOST/FOUND PROP LAMBORN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
19:54:05 CIVIL PROBLEM NIAGARA AVE; Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 6

Total reported: 36 VW=4, WW=1, CIT=5, CAA=2 

23



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

24



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 22, 2019 
 

 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Revised Preliminary Environmental Assessment for the North Fork 

Mancos Master Development Plan – Town Response Letter 

 

Summary:   

Tabled discussion and Board decision from March 12, 2019. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

32



March 26, 2019 

 

Allen Crockett 

Bureau of Land Management 

2300 River Frontage Road 

Silt, CO 81652 

 

Re:   Environmental Assessment Comments: North Fork Mancos Master Development Plan for Oil 

and Gas Exploration and Development, Gunnison and Delta Counties, Colorado (DOI-BLM-CO-N040-

2017-050-EA) 

 

Dear Mr. Crockett,  

  

Please accept this as a formal comment from the Paonia Board of Trustees concerning the 

Environmental Assessment: North Fork Mancos Master Development Plan for Oil and Gas Exploration 

and Development, Gunnison and Delta Counties, Colorado (DOI-BLM-CO-N040-2017-050-EA). The Town 

presented comments previously, June 4, 2018, and believe that they are still relevant to this project.  

However, the revised Environmental Assessment fails to account for many of our previous comments 

but we have further concerns especially in regards to water usage and transportation of water into the 

area.  The Environmental Assessment only takes into account the cumulative effect of the very limited 

number of wells in this portion of the development plan.  It does not reflect the cumulative effect of the 

current wellhead development or the other identified wellhead development beyond this narrow plan.  

Cumulative impacts may be more difficult to assess if you include this and other oil and gas 

development, however the Board of Trustees feel that it is imperative that these impacts be identified. 

This initial 5 pads/35 wells is just a first phase of a larger potential 13 pad development, therefore we 

believe the BLM has the obligation to analyze impact on the entire 13 pad development. The EA states 

that: “if and when additional development plans are proposed by GELLC, each of these would be 

analyzed in a NEPA document, and each would include a cumulative impact analysis based on what has 

previously been implemented, been approved but not yet implemented, been proposed but not yet 

approved, and could be considered reasonably foreseeable.” This sounds like “piecemeal planning,” 

especially in context to the other ongoing oil and gas development in the area. What’s more, the BLM 

itself identifies in the EA a number of cumulative effects that can occur due to oil and gas activities:  

 

Based upon the information provided in the revised DRAFT EA the updated proposal would use 67.3-

acre feet (or nearly 22,000,000 gallons) of water for each well. The total estimated water use for the 

entire project is 2,355.5-acre feet. (or roughly 

767,000,000 gallons).  This water is projected to come from a variety of sources: 

33



 

o Fresh water from the Muddy Creek/West Muddy Creek when available; 

o The West Elk Mine’s water right; 

o The City of Delta (has this water right truly been secured?); 

 

 

o Recycled/produced water from other oil and gas operations, including Coal Bed Methane (CBM) 

wells. 

 

The new fracking method would also require a significant amount of sand to prop up the newly formed 

fractures. The Town of Paonia has serious concerns about this dramatic increase in water use, and what 

it means for the Town and surrounding community.  

 

In particular the Town is concerned about the following impacts identified in this new Draft EA: 

 

1. Increased Water Withdrawal 

 

• Impact on Town of permanently withdrawing 2,335.5 acre-feet from the hydrologic cycle 

o Paonia is currently living through evidence of the fragility of our water systems. While the 

current water emergency was not caused by oil and gas operations, it is clear proof of how little room 

for error there is on an over-allocated, drought-stricken hydrologic system.  

o Water used for drilling wells and fracking them is never returned to the hydrologic cycle. It is 

either reused in future fracking efforts or stored forever deep down in wastewater disposal wells. While 

the water used from the Muddy and West Muddy Creeks, and potential groundwater depletions from 

coaled methane wells, does not supply the Town of Paonia water system, it does supply irrigators in the 

valley, and residents who rely on various ditches and canals for water supply. Permanently withdrawing 

the water threatens these residents and agricultural businesses, and therefore Paonia’s economy. At 

least half of Paonia’s economy relies on the water coming from the watersheds impacted by this project. 

Any stresses to surrounding source waters is likely to result in a burden on the Town’s already strained 

systems.  

o The REA describes a 2017 programmatic Biological Opinion, produced by the US Fish and 

Wildlife Service and the US Forest Service, that limits the amount of water that can be withdrawn from 

the Gunnison Subbasin for energy development to 607 acre-feet annually. This limit is set to preserve 

adequate instream flows for the endangered and threatened species in the river system. Maintaining 

adequate instream flows for threatened and endangered species is also critical for the outfitters, guides, 

34



and recreation businesses that rely on those same instream flows to support sport fishing all along the 

North Fork and its tributaries.  

 

• Importance of fully understanding all possible sources of water for this project 

o As was discussed briefly above, Gunnison Energy has not yet secured the rights to all the water 

required for this project. In years 3 and 4, there is a 368.5 acre-foot annual shortfall. This is likely the 

result of the programmatic Biological Opinion discussed above that limits the total amount of water that 

can be withdrawn from the Gunnison Subbasin for energy purposes. That means that Gunnison Energy 

will have to find non-tributary water to supply its needs. Where will that water come from? How can the 

BLM properly analyze the impact of this water use if it does not know where the water will come from? 

o 368.5 acre-feet is a significant amount of water. Trucking that amount of water through Paonia 

would require nearly 12,000 truck trips, ten times what is currently being considered. Transporting it via 

pipeline would require the installation of many miles of temporary, above-ground pipeline in addition to 

what is contemplated in this REA.  

o The BLM cannot consider development impacts that haven’t been defined. That makes this 

application, and this REA not only incomplete but premature. With this REA, the BLM and Gunnison 

Energy are gambling with the upper North Fork’s water future, which is already in peril under the 

pressures of drought, climate change, and likely sacrifices to support Colorado’s Drought Contingency, 

and Demand Management Plans. The scope of water use for this project alone is great enough to merit 

an Environmental Impact Statement to understand fully the long-term implications of this scale of water 

withdrawals.  

 

2. Surface Water Impacts and Sediment 

Surface water is the lifeblood of the Western Slope, and indeed, the entire Colorado River Basin. This 

proposed development is at the headwaters of the entire basin, which provides domestic drinking water 

to a total of 40 million people. Immediately within the North Fork of the Gunnison watershed, even 

small impacts to water quality could have significant health and economic impacts.  The North Fork 

Valley is noted for the quality of its produce, meats, and wines.  The amount of water now scheduled to 

be diverted to oil/gas production creates a direct threat to the North Fork’s agricultural industry.  

 

3.  Wildlife/Recreation 

Of particular concern are impacts to mule deer, elk, Canada lynx, Yellow-billed Cuckoo, bald eagle, and 

greenback cutthroat trout. This 35 well project, coupled with the impacts of immediately surrounding 

energy development proposals, threaten this rare interconnected habitat and its wildlife. It is imperative 

that the BLM consider different alternatives (and fewer well pads) to fully explore alternatives that 

would decrease the negative impacts to wildlife―especially big game.  

 

35



The Draft EA considers very few protections in regards to wildlife and hunting.  The proposed conditions 

of approval specifically ignores a request from CPW staff and an affected stakeholder to limit activity 

from August 15th to December 1st so as not to interfere with big game hunting.   

 

4. Traffic Impacts 

The BLM must consider traffic impacts to the roadways, access routes, nearby residents, wildlife, and all 

communities that will be affected by this large oil and gas proposal. A single well can require thousands 

of truck trips on federal, state, and county roadways that were not designed for that size and frequency. 

Colorado Highway 133 already poses significant risk for travelers due to the treacherous climate, 

geology, and isolated location.  

 

The Draft EA estimates that the development of a single well will require 1,920 vehicle trips and, at 

peak, 102 trips per day.  The estimated 2.1 million pounds of sand per day, at peak, from the Elk Creek 

Mine load out will contribute to the congestion added to the local highway/road system.  The safety and 

infrastructure impacts, including the degradation to our highways must be considered. 

 

The BLM does not adequately address the safety concerns associated with such drastic increases in 

traffic. The REA relies on conditions of approval that require operators to follow all applicable traffic 

rules to mitigate any potential impact. The Hwy 133 corridor is already the second most dangerous 

route in the state of Colorado, as a result of the significant geohazards, rock falls, and mudslides that 

occur on a regular basis. Significantly increasing the amount of traffic in this corridor will likely increase 

accident rates and stress local emergency response teams, and adversely impact their ability o respond 

to other local emergencies.  

 

5. Impact on Town Economy and Revenue  

Paonia is an agritourism hub. An extremely conservative estimate of agritourism’s economic impact to 

Delta County shows almost $100,000 per year in tax revenue. Oil and gas development would also likely 

have a demonstrable impact on agritourism visits. If fewer people visit Paonia’s orchards and vineyards, 

due to traffic congestion, air/water pollution, and a perception that the North Fork Valley has been 

converted from an agriculture base economy to an oil/gas economy because of large-scale increases in 

oil and gas development nearby, the Town could lose a substantial revenue stream. 

 

Paonia has worked for years to transition its economy away from dependence on extractive industries. 

Studies like North Fork 2020 and the Heart and Soul project describe arts, education, sustainable 

agriculture, agritourism, and recreation as the future of Paonia. Large-scale oil and gas development in 

our watershed is inconsistent with such a vision. 

 

36



We believe that the Revised EA is inadequate in addressing the cumulative impacts on energy 

development in this fragile area. Given the recent approval of the 146-well Bull Mountain Master 

Development Plan, a potential second phase of the NFMMDP, and the extent of the existing natural gas 

infrastructure, and unregulated pipelines and the number of oil and gas industry exemptions from 

environmental laws and regulations, an Environmental Impact Statement is necessary to properly 

analyze the potential cumulative impacts to and the carrying capacity of the region. In addition, a 

moratorium on new development during an ongoing Resource Management Plan (RMP) revision process 

is required under the National Environmental Policy Act. The BLM is currently revising its Resource 

Management Plan for the Uncompahgre Planning Area, and the US Forest Service is currently 

undergoing a Forest Revision Plan. The project area in question was leased under an outdated RMP, and 

moving forward with development would prejudice the RMP revision process and would significantly 

impact the environment. 

 

Therefore, given the high likelihood that this project will have significant impacts on the environment, 

we respectfully request that the Environmental Assessment be rejected and a full Environment Impact 

Study be conducted to address these as well as any other issues that may arise during such a study. 

 

With Respect, 

 

 

 

Kenneth D. Knight 

Paonia Town Administrator on behalf of: 

The Paonia Board of Trustees; and, 

The Citizens of Paonia 

 

37



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Personnel Handbook Sections 202 & 209 Amendment – Access to 

Personnel Files and Medical Information Privacy 

 

Summary:   

Tabled discussion and Board decision from March 12, 2019. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

38



  202 ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILES  
 

Effective 

Date: 

6/01/201

8 

Revision 

Date: 

The Town maintains a personnel file on each employee. The personnel file includes such information as 
the employee's job application, resume, records of training, documentation of performance appraisals 
and salary increases, and other employment records. 

 

Personnel files are the property of the Town, and access to the information they contain is subject to the 
Colorado Open Records Act.  To the extent possible , only supervisors  management personnel, and those 
filing a lawful open records request with the Town should be allowed to review the requested personnel file 
information.  All personnel records are maintained in compliance with the laws related to public records. No 
documents shall be released from a personnel record, except as required by the Open Records Act, or in the 
alternative, without a written request from the employee designating the documents to be released and the 
person or entity to which the release is to be made, and indemnifying and holding harmless the Town from 
liability, claims, and demands resulting from such release. 

 

Employees who wish to review their own file should contact the Town Clerk. With reasonable advance 
notice, employees may review their own personnel files in the Town's offices and in the presence of a Town 
representative. An employee shall have the opportunity to submit a letter to the file, responding to or 
rebutting information contained in his/her file. 

 

209 MEDICAL INFORMATION PRIVACY  
 

Effective 

Date: 

6/01/201

8 

Revision 

Date: 

the Town i shall maintain employees' personal information in accordance with Colorado Open Records Act, 
and to the extent possible, in compliance i the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). 
The Town Clerk is the designated Privacy Officer for all employee medical information. 
 

 

39



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Edesia Community Kitchen - Mediation 

Summary:   

Administrator Follow-up after meeting with Town Attorney and Callie West (and Attorney) to 

discuss options. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

40



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 25, 2019 
 

 

Town Administrator Evaluation/Review 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

41



Ken Knight Evaluation. 

Here is the compilation of all of the performance objectives from the 
evaluation forms. 

1. Evaluate the water system and take all reasonable steps     
necessary to improve the integrity of the system.  

2. Make sure that the town has a growth plan in place.      

3. Hire and train an intern for Space to Create and the     
Comprehensive Plan.  

4. Make Clark Street a one way street with an exit on Minnesota.      

5. Get a grant for a raw water storage tank.      

6. Explore moving Town Hall to provide additional commercial/art     
space.  

7. Implement timely, monthly, financial reports to the board so that     
the board can make more informed decisions.  

8. Develop key position/employee backups so as to not allow the     
town to become totally dependent on one person.  

9. Based on Ken’s self-report and his behavior during meetings,     
being less reactive to certain members of the community would 
be helpful.  

42



10. Improve follow up and monitoring of projects, examples would be   
the warehouses and with the water system.  

11. Increase work session time with the trustees and the public to    
improve dialogue and seek solutions.  

12. Ensure that all information for council meetings gets compiled by   
Friday. 

13. Approach challenges and issues with a collaborative mind-set.    

14. Research and present best practices for water system   
improvements with pros and cons of each option.  

15. Communication skills. Improvements in conflict resolution.    

16. Begin the process to develop a master plan for the Town.    

43



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Sustainable North Fork Valley – Single Use Plastic Bag Ban 

Summary:   

A request that the Town pass a single use plastic bag ban phased in over a one-year period 

with Boomerang Bags. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 6, 2019 
 

 

Citizen Request – Presentation of Plastic Bag Reduction Basics 

Summary:   

Discussion request by Sid Lewis to start talks about a plastic bag reduction/ban ordinance for 

the town of Paonia. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

The Learning Council & Colorado Farm & Food Alliance - Large Park 

Special Event - Community Fair 

Summary:   

Annual presentation of the financial impact from the 2018 Mountain Harvest Festival. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Phil Wassell - Paonia Experiential Academy – Town Park Mural Follow-

up 

Summary:   

The Pre-approval for the project was granted by the Board at the August 14, 2018 Board 

meeting, with the stipulations that the mural design be pre-approved by the Town, the mural 

can only be on one cinder-block wall of the whole shelter at Town Park, and that the base coat 

for the wall will be provided by the Town.  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

93



94



Hi Corinne, 
Here is the info for the Town Park mural proposal for the upcoming town meeting next Tuesday. 
Please let me know if you have any other requests. 
Thanks and have a great day, 
Phil 
 
Town Park Mural Proposal  
 
Hello everyone, we are here today to present you with our process and steps to making this 
mural possible.  
 
Project pre-approval: 
Our teacher brought this project to your attention in the fall of 2018. The idea for the project was 
to first give the shelter in the town park and good cleaning and a fresh coat of paint. We then 
wanted to add life to the shelter and make it more friendly looking by adding a mural to the 
walls. The council asked to see a design and proposal for the project and we have been working 
on making that happen during this school year. 
 
Survey and results: 
We started out by going around town with a survey asking people what they would like to see 
incorporated into the mural, and what comes to mind when you think of Paonia? We found lots 
of overlap in the answers. Some of the common answers were: peonies, mountains, birds, 
trees, fruit, music, flowers, animals, fruit, children, and wine. We took most of those ideas and 
integrated them into our final design. If we get approval to continue the design onto the other 
walls, we will have more room to incorporate more of the ideas we were given. 
 
Design:  
We decided to keep the design simple so it would be easier to continue it onto the other walls if 
that portion of the project gets approved later. Some of these design decisions include: 

1. Keeping the background the color of the wall. This will make it easier to touch up 
most of the wall if there is graffiti or another mess happening. 

2. Choosing to only have details in the foreground subjects such as the plants to 
help create depth in the image, but also to keep the execution time of the project 
manageable. 

3. Having the middle ground of the design be where we include people and 
animals. We also chose to make these subjects appear in silhouette only with 
more faded flat colors. This will make the design easier to execute and will also 
avoid the issue of race and ethnicity that can become complicated when trying to 
be inclusive to all people who may be looking at the mural. 

 
The Budget :  One day the entire school went down to the park and measured the painted 
surface area of the shelter. There was 1200 square feet of white areas and 300 square feet of 
green areas. We measured it 2 times to make sure our numbers were accurate. Next we 
researched how many square feet a gallon of paint can cover and found that for our purposes 
with a textured wall, 1 gallon paint covers about 300 sq ft.  
After doing the math we came up with the following numbers. 
 
We have 1200 sqft of White -  which is about 4 gallons (but we opted for a 5 gallon bucket to 
have extra left over for the mural painting) This should cost around $190.  

95



We have 300 Sqft of green which is about- 1 gallon (but again, we opted for 2 gallons in order to 
have extra for the mural). This should cost about $72 
Red- we need 1 gallon- which should cost about $36 
Blue- we need 1 quart - which should cost about $15 
Yellow- we need 1 gallon-which should cost about $36 
Black- we need 1 quart - which should cost about $15 
Purple- we need 1 quart which should cost about $15 
 
The Total price for paint should be about - $380.00 (including repainting the entire shelter and 
the mural painting as well). 
 
OTHER SUPPLIES 
Rollers- $ 20  
Paint brushes- $15 
2 drop cloths- $30 
2(5 gallon buckets- $6 
1 roll of paint tape- $7 
 
Total price of supplies- $80 to 100 (+ or -) We may be able to source these from donations and 
not buy them new. 
 

 
 

 
Timeline: 
March 26th: present proposal to town council for approval 
Between approval and the Town Park Fair we will clean and repaint the shelter. We will also 
apply the linework for the mural wall so it is ready to paint during the Fair on May 18th. We are 
also considering putting a fresh coat of paint on the trash cans in order to give fair attendees 
and small kids more opportunities to participate in painting. 
May 18th solar fair: Complete phase one of the mural 
After May 18th: Come back to another town council meeting to get approval for a continuation of 
the mural design onto the other walls of the town park shelter. 
 
Other people and organizations who want to help. 
We have been in contact with the Creative Coalition about this project as well and they have 
expressed interest in helping to fund the designing of the mural. We would like to purchase the 
paint locally from Dependable Lumber to support local business. There might be a chance they 
would donate the paint to the project, but we wanted to see what kind of funding the town would 
be willing to put forth first. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration on this. We look forward to hearing your thoughts on 
the project. 
 

96



97



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Mountain Harvest Creative – 2018 Financial Impact Report 

Summary:   

Annual presentation of the financial impact from the 2018 Mountain Harvest Festival. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

98



99



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 13, 2019 
 

 

Tree Board Vacancy – Letters of Interest Deadline 

Summary:   

The Tree Board has a vacancy pending with the resignation of Tamie Meck.  A deadline for 

letters of interest needs to be set. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

100



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Finance & Personnel 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

101



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

102



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

103



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

104



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Space to Create 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

105



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 19, 2019 
 

 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

106


	Top
	12. Board Letter - NFMMDP
	Revised Preliminary Environmental Assessment for the North Fork Mancos Master Development Plan.docx
	NFMMDP Letter.docx

	13. Personnel Policy Update
	ASF - Personnel Handbook Sections 202 & 209 Amendment – Access to Personnel Files and Medical Information Privacy.docx
	202 ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILES.docx

	14. Edesia Community Kitchen - Mediation
	Edesia Community Kitchen - Mediation.docx

	15. Town Administrator Review
	ASF - Admin Review.docx
	ken knight2.pdf

	16. Bag Ban
	Sustainable North Fork Valley - Bag Ban Discussion.docx
	Sustainable North Fork Valley - Bag Ban Discussion_Redacted.pdf

	17. Lewis - Plastic Bag Presentation
	ASF - Plastic Bag Ordinance Discussion.docx
	Lewis Request - Bags_Redacted.pdf

	18. Park SEP Fair
	The Learning Council &amp; Colorado Farm &amp; Food Alliance - Large Park Special Event - Community Fair.docx
	TLC-SEP_Redacted.pdf

	19. Park Mural
	Paonia Experiential Academy – Town Park Mural.docx
	Park Mural_Redacted.pdf
	Mural Plan.docx
	Mural Design.pdf

	20. MHC
	Mountain Harvest Creative – 2018 Financial Impact Report.docx
	MHC - 2018 UPDATE_Redacted.pdf

	21. Tree Board Appointment Deadline
	ASF - Tree Board Vacancy.docx

	Bottom

